VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY
WATER AND LIGHT BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, June 11, 2019
Meeting Location: 302 East McMillan Ave
Meeting Time: 5:30 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Agendas are not final until approved by a majority vote of the Water &
Light Board members.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Water and Light Board Meeting — Regular Session — Tuesday, May 14, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.

6. WATER AND LIGHT CHAIRPERSON ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. None Prescheduled

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Prior to consideration of official business, citizens may speak on any matter
citizens may wish to bring to the attention of the Water and Light Board. Please limit comments to 3
minutes as per Michigan General Village Law and Michigan Open Meetings Act.
1. None Prescheduled

8. SUBMISSION OF BILLS AND FINANCIAL UPDATES

1. Water & Light — Monthly Bills — May 2019

582 Electric Fund $91,942.86
591 Water Fund $6,894.41

Total: $98,837.27
582 Save the Bells Fund — as of 5/31/2019 $12,230.41

9. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS - Communications addressed to the Water and Light Board
are distributed to all members and are acknowledged for information or are referred to a committee
or staff for follow-up.

1. Best Practices for Fiscally Ready Communities —
a. Department of Treasury training: Marquette, June 20, 2019 from 1:00 p.m. — 4:00 p.m.

10. INTRODUCTION AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

1. None Prescheduled

Page 1 of 2



1.

12,

13.

14,

15.

REPORTS OF VILLAGE MANAGEMENT - The Village Manager, Assistant Village Manager, and
Superintendent of Water and Light may submit reports or information to the Water and Light Board

as updates and consideration.

1. Superintendent of Water and Light
2. Assistant Village Manager

3. Village Manager

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. None Prescheduled

NEW BUSINESS

1. Save the Bells Accounting

COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS

ADJOURNMENT - REGULAR SESSION

Page 2 of 2



May 14,2019 pagel

NEWBERRY WATER & LIGHT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
May 14, 2019

Present: Board members: Vincent, Brown, Dishaw, Medelis, Wendt.

Absent: None.

Also Present: Clerk -Schummer, Village Manger — James-Mesloh, Assistant Village Manager —Buck Vallad, Lori
Stokes.

Call to Order: Chairperson Vincent called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. at the Village of Newberry Offices, 302
East McMillan Avenue, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda: Moved by Medelis, support by Brown, CARRIED, to approve agenda as presented. Ayes:
All.

Approval of Minutes: Moved by Brown, support by Dishaw, CARRIED, to approve minutes from the April 9,
2019 W&L meeting as written. Ayes: All.

Water and Light Chairperson Announcements: Vincent thanked Kirby Wendt for serving on the W&L Board.
Vincent stated the following: “During the March Public Comment, a comment and question was made about the
agenda for the WL Board meeting not being published on the Village website by the Friday before the meeting.
The question was to the why it wasn’t published at that time. Before I answer the question, a little history about
agenda and packet publishing on the Village website. Agendas and packets were first published on the Village
website in 2017, when our current Village Manager began her tenure at the Village of Newberry. Before that time,
agendas were provided at the meeting. As to why the agenda wasn’t published before the meeting, it makes little
to no sense to publish an agenda for a meeting before all items for the meeting are set. The Consumer’s bill had
not reached the Village offices before the Friday before the WL Board meeting. As has been done in the past,
when an internet published agenda is different than the meeting agenda at the time of the meeting, certain
members of the public take to the internet to make inflammatory statements of hiding something or trying to get
away with something nefarious. It’s better to publish a set agenda when it’s appropriate than publish an agenda at
some preset time before a meeting that may and in many cases change due to any variety of reasons. The Open
Meetings Act of Michigan, PA 267, does not require that an agenda be published before the scheduled meeting
time. Again, publishing an agenda before the meeting could lead to confusion and has led to past accusations of
wrongdoing, although there has been no specificity in the accusations, just vague shadowy goings on. What this
comes down to, is the word, “agenda.” An agenda that a public body uses to conduct the meeting is the list of
items that the public body wants to accomplish during the meeting. Some of the items are required under the
OMA, such as approving minutes, and calling for a closed session during a public meeting. There are some items
that are voted upon and require a simple or super majority. Some items cannot be accomplished at the meeting
due to lack of information or time, so are tabled or dropped. But others use the word agenda to mean a personal
agenda. And almost invariably, the term agenda in this manner is used negatively. As it relates to recent history, it
also means that there are those who feel that there is some disreputable backdoor agenda that is really guiding
what is happening with various village boards. It is conspiracy theory run amok. There is no secret agenda done
behind closed doors. There are no secret meetings. But that won’t stop those who only care to sow chaos. It is
those individuals and groups with the agenda to throw verbal and written monkey wrenches and grenades, and
hide behind anonymity that are harming progress in Newberry. They make broad, sweeping statements that
cannot be verified, thereby feeding into the conspiracy theories that others believe. Or worse, make personal
attacks without any facts, and then walk away, absconding themselves from any personal liability while others
take up the fight for falsehood. Those that support this agenda have been hoodwinked into believing something
that isn’t true. What is behind these attacks? Revenge. They want revenge because they feel they were treated
unfairly. Revenge is for children. How does revenge help Newberry attract business? How does revenge make
this government work? How does revenge make sure the streets clear of snow and the power from going out?
Revenge does nothing. Ultimately, this revenge agenda could lead to the downfall of Newberry, an actual stated
outcome of this group. And at every point, they wash their hands of any responsibility for their actions. They
make problems that don’t exist, in order to take credit when the problem that never actually existed in the first
place, goes away. With this revenge agenda, Newberry has come to a standstill. Things cannot get accomplished
for the long term like it should. If you follow this group of people, ask yourself this question: What is their
motivation behind their decisions? You can tell a moral decision because it is made without self-interest. It is
made in the interest of others. These people are making only decisions in their own self-interest. Ask them. The
agenda that should be followed is very simple and is probably the agenda of most people, including the people




May 14,2019 page?2

that I know here that enter public service: Leave it better than when you found it. We should be concentrating our
efforts so that the kindergartner today, when they graduate, wants to live here and contribute to our great
community. Newberry has so much potential, so much talent, and so many great people that just want things to be
better. Let’s be who we can be.”

Public Comments on Agenda Items: None.

Submission of Bills and Financial Updates:

A)) Water & Light — Monthly Bills — April 2019 - Motion by Medelis, support by Brown, CARRIED, recommend
Village Council pay the April Electric Fund bill in the amount of $110,426.61. Discussion followed. Dishaw
objected to paying legal fees, $7,600.18, for the Stokes matter, because the W&L Board didn’t have any say in
the arbitration process. Ayes: All. Motion by Brown, support by Medelis, CARRIED, recommend Village
Council pay the April Water Fund bill in the amount of $9,5313.12. Discussion followed. Ayes: All.

B.) Christmas Light Fund is currently at $12,225.22. Wendt questioned whether the Christmas light fund should
have it’s own checkbook to pay bills. Discussion followed.

Petitions and Communications: None.

Introduction and Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions: None.

Reports of Village Management:

1.) Superintendent of Water and Light: Joe Lively, working foreman, submitted a written report.
2.) Assistant Village Manager: Vallad gave a verbal report as well as submitting charts for review.
3.) Village Manager: James-Mesloh gave a verbal as well as written report.
Unfinished Business:
1.) Budget Amendments 2019: Moved by Dishaw, support by Brown, CARRIED, move to approve the 2019
Budget Amendments for Water and Electric Funds as presented. Discussion followed. Ayes: All.
New Business:
1.) Joint Committee between WL Board and Council — Ordinances & Policies.
a. Medelis presented a letter, dated July 27, 2001, from the Village to Richard King regarding Ordinance
A:4:4. Discussion followed. Board Action: to request legal opinion on right-of-refusal for utility service.
b. Dishaw stated he would like W&L to adopt a policy that we have an annual rate increase based on the cost
living using Social Security index. Moved by Dishaw, support by Medelis, WITHDRAWN, to recommend to
Village Council increase all utilities by 2%. Discussion followed. Motion withdrawn until more information is
gathered for Board Members to consider.
¢. Vincent stated that he would like to have a joint W&L and Village Council Committee to look at and update
W&L ordinances and policies.

Comments By Board Members: Medelis stated he thought there should be an Enterprising Fund Board instead of
the W&L Board. Dishaw stated he felt W&L should have it’s own attorney. Vallad stated that a local attorney
would be a good idea for small cases.

Adjourn Meeting: Motion by Medelis, support by Dishaw, CARRIED, to adjourn meeting at 6:46 p.m. Ayes: All,

These minutes are unapproved until voted on at the next meeting.

Terese Schummer, Clerk Lawrence Vincent, Chairperson



89°0T T130 - Z0000-ZESLL0THE HITWNN LNNOIIV YIDVYNVIN 0ESO-162-906 NOZI¥3A 000°058-€85-285
1081 Xv4 T0000-ZES£L0TF6 YISWNN LNNODIY X4 NOZIM3A 000°058-£85-85
00'S9T IIAQV VoA oM "9'd ‘ONIMANIM '8 WVHYYO ‘ONNOA 00Z'T08-€85-285
0021 SOIASSIA VYNLOVYLNOD 8 IYNOISSIH0Hd SNOILYDINNWINODITIL 3ONVY 000'T08-€85-285
00°00T ONINVITD 301440 WNLOVHLNOD 8 TYNOISSII0Ud YNV ‘Hlvd 000'T08-€85-285
0095 avl TYNLOVHLNOD B TYNOISSII0¥d TVLIdSOH AOT A¥YIIMIN NI13H 000'T08-€85-78
YO TEY SIWNHOHINN SINHOLINN - ONIHLOTD ALTAVS ZLIY 000°£9£-€85-28S
SL06E /M SWHOJINN SINHOHINN - ONIHLOTO AL34VS ZLIY 000"£9£-€85-285
oLty S1008XHOM SINYOAINN - ONIHLOTD Hd3SOr ‘AT3AN 000'£9£-€85-285
86'1S UYIMIYOM - DNIAVYL VHYIZS SWHOLINN - DNIHLOTD  NOINN LIQ3¥D V34V NONIWVYNOHYL 000°£9£-€85-285
S6'607 13N4/sv0 JMLDTTA- 110 B SVO TYSHIAINN AVMAIIS - INVE XIM 000°652-€85-285
68 VT1LOY NOTIVD T M0 B VO INIEINTVA OLNV SANNYA 000'65£-€85-285
00'sTT d ove ILOWITY TYANNY JUYMLIOS LI LHON "Ll 00z T5L-€85-285
05T ¥ILYM S31ddNS SNILYYIdO VOI ATHHYY 00T T5£-€85-285
¥8'997 3SvE N0 MOOY SdH dIAV] Sanddns SNILYY3do ANVAINOD A1ddNS INIM Y3MOd 00T Z5L-€85-785
00'S6T $3LV3IN NN319 MIIAIY 3INAIHIS ILVY S3rddNS ONILYYIdO ONIIINIONI ILD 00T'25L-€85-285
66'8TT SN0 INIL $S3NddNS ONILYY¥IdO SIDIAYIS TYLIAVD NOZVINY 00T'25£-€85-¢8S
88T $3dIM Or0D S31ddNS ONILYY3IAO K1ddNS WIMLSNANI YO 00T'Z5L-€85-28S
00'€T 43g3Ime $31ddNS ONILYYIAO “INI SLYVd OLNY NNAT 00T'26L-€85-285
66'€ AY3LLYE 110A 6 $311ddNS ONILYHIJO JUYMAYYH ¥31504 00T'25L-£85-285
66’7 SOLIINNOD AY¥ILLYE L10A6 $31ddNS SNILYYIAO JUYMAYUYH ¥31S04 001'26.-€85-285
Wit SYINVITD/SYE IOVEUYD $311ddNS DNILYYIO INI LINEVIN SOVIN 00T'76.-E85-78S
00°057 Z0-T-8 ANOE LNIWIAOUAINI TVLIdYD $334 )NV NVE SN 660'75L-€85-285
186 ¥3dvd S3rddNns 3J1440 S19NA0Yd 3D1340 TYNOILYN 000'754-€85-¢8S
L8'TE T8 WNIWIYd INNT FONVHNSNI 3401 IHL ‘QUVANYLS 000'97£-€85-785
26'219 INTWTIVLSNI LSHI4 - 0208/T/L - 610Z/T/L WNINIY AJ110d NOILYSNIdWOD ,SHINYOM GNN4 dINOD SHTHYOM TNIN 000°'S7L-£85-78S
09'% $334113% YHE0D NOILYZITVLIdSOH HLYON v 000'6TL-€85-785
SISN3dX3 TYHINGD £85 1dog

TT'SS0E NOLLNAIY1SIA JIY1I313 285 3daq 104 [e10L
o YANNVIS/HIZINYOYO NSIA/SAYVD QSS/SHOLINOW JYNLINYNA B dINOT 3D1340-AYILNO LdVD SIDIAYIS LIV NOZYINY 000°086-785-285
00585 ¥H NV "WAY ‘IINYNH - SYILNdINOD JUNLINYNA 8 diNO3 31440-AVILNO LdVD LHOM L'l 000°086-785-285
85’1y ISYIAN YILIW ALIDVAYD 30UV YALIW ALIDVAYD 398V -3SHIAN 3ISYIAN LIV 000°058-785-285
6T0ET'T SIAITIS Q3ddIA ‘SIAOTD ‘SIATINS 8 SIAQTO ONILSIL TYNLIVHLNOD '8 TYNOISSIHOYHd ANVAINIOD A1ddNS 3N ¥3MOd 000°708-786-785
00'56T 4dY HONOYHL QINYHOIYId SIDIAYIS ONIYIINIONT WNLIVHLNOD 8 TYNOISSIJOHd ONIYIINIONI DLD 000°708-786-285
LEEYT dINVT 02 $3ddNS ONLLYHIO ANVAIANOD A1ddNS 3NN ¥3MOd 00T'25£-785-285
05'9 1SSV 354 INIW $arddns ONILYYIdO INI 3NTVA OLNY S,ANNVA 00T°Z5£-285-Z85
08'8T LN3TIT1d34 504 $3ddns ONILYY¥IJO INI 09 AL34YS NYTHLYON 00T'752-785-785
16'81S JAVI/ID01LSIML TOYLNOIOLOHA/dNOI YOLIINNOI/MNIINSNI IAITS $3rddNS ONILYHIdO ANVINGD A1ddNS 3NIT 4IMOd 00T°26£-286-285
en 44 SIAOT9 - LHOI1YS $3ddns ONILYYIJO JUVMAYYH ¥3LSO4 001°75£-785-T85
07’6 T8 WNIWIYd 3NNT FONVYNSNI 34N 3JHL ‘QUVANYLS 000°97L-785-285
NOILNAIYLSIA J1¥LI313 285 3deg
pun4 31393(3 Z8S pund
unowy *J59Q 90AUY 59 auIq “Au| JOPUsp J3QUWINN 19

610C AVIN
SITAVAVd LHDI1 B HILVM

AYYISGMAN 30 FOVITIA



98'TV6'T6

06'S0T

L

TO'6LT'C

so9svze
T

¥1'800'59

EL'602'S

6L'8€

1188

LETT
LETT
8901
8901

punj 511233 Z8S pun4 Jog [e30L

ST139 IHL AVS 886 1daq Jo4 |e3o)
NYNL3Y 3dVLHOVI8
XOF100L/HIVHI ONIQ104/431SNA/NND 31dVLS

NOILVZIWILIO AD¥3NT £85 1daq 104 |e10]L
SIAILNIONI ATHLNOW

¥3IMOd Q3SVYHIUNJ 985 1dag 404 |er0L

oLV

ALIDYAYD

1118 ANVIH3IAO0TD

WWWOD JAS ONO41H0d F1aVMINIY/ININOD DAS DNIJIYd NIFHD
8TSESSPE8TH#LIDV SOTUIW

JINVYNILNIVIN ONIQTING 586 1daq 104 [er0L
ay¥vno 40oa

S3ISN3dX3 TvHINaD €85 1dag 404 e10)

avd 133N

9NILNOJJV TVLNIWNYIAOD
LIN3WISHNGNITY TY¥IISAH 13D

02/S 8 91/5-¢T/S 1IAVHL ONINIVHL YO INJNISHNEWIIY
ONITIIE 8N

39V.LS0d 8N

£¥9€TH000 120V

£-80TZ#000 12DV

INOHJ LHOIM/¥3LYM

%530 £0000-2ESL£L0TP6 YIFWNN LNNOJDY
530 £0000-ZESLL0ZF6 YIBNNN LNNOJIDV
530 £0000-CESLLOZPE YIAWNN LNNOJDY
530 £0000-ZESLLOTY6 YITWNN LNNOJDY
3530 £0000-ZES££0ZP6 YIAWNN LNNODIDV
NS30 £0000-ZESLL0T#6 YITNNN LNNODJDV
%530 £0000-Z€S££0TP6 YIAWNN LNNODJDV
%530 £0000-2ESLL0TF6 YIBWNN LNNOIDV
31530 £0000-ZESLL0Z¥6 YIANNN LNNOJDY
1132 - Z0000-ZESLLOZY6 YIBINNN LNNOIDV
T13D - Z0000-ZESLLOTYE HIAWNN LNNODJDV
7132 - 20000-TESLL0TFE YIAWNN LNNODIDV
1133 - Z0000-ZESLLOZPE YIANNN LNNOJDV
7130 - Z000O0-ZESLLOZY6 HITANN LNNOJDV

S3ISN3AX3 ST139 IHL JAVS
S3SN3IdX3 ST139 IHL IAVS

IVNLIVHLNOD 8 T¥NOISSIJ0Yd

ANIATHLNOW NOISSINSNYYL DLV
HIMOd d3SYHIUNd
43IMOd 3SVHIUNd

TVALIVHLNQD 8 TYNOISSIZ04d
TVNLOVHLNOD 8 TYNOISSIJ0Ud

JONVYNILNIVIN 78 SHIVd3Y

“LNIVIN 8 HIVd3Y J10IHIA
INIWdOTIAIA TYNOISSIJ0¥d
INIWJOTIAIA TYNOISSIH0Yd
INIWJOTIAIA TYNOISSIH0Yd

ONILNIYd '8 DNIHSENd
39v1$0d

SJILdO-434I4 - SLOGYINYT

LINYILNI SLOQYINYT
IANOHdITAL

WA'Y 129T-162-906
YIOVNYN £TZT-T62-906
JONVNIS $T9T-162-906
WOOY ONILIIN EE9T -T62-906
T€S8-€67-906

/M £29T-T62-906

"¥'H TT91-162-906
Y312 /M 1895-€62-906
4INID EEVE-E67-906
JINVHIIW 9ETO-162-906
NYW3INI 6T60-0St-906
NYNINI 8090-162-906
YH S500-T62-906

WA'Y 9090-T62-906

FUVMAYVH ¥31S04 00T'7SL-885-78S
JYYMAYVH H¥31S0A 00T'75.-885-28S
$7134 JHL IAVS 885 1dag

v2In 000'T08-£85-285
NOILVZIWILJO ADYHIN3 £85 1d3g

ANVAINOD NOISSIWSNYY.L NvIIYINY 001°926-985-78S
L9 324N0S3Y ADYINT SWD 000°926-985-785
d0-02 21412313 ANYTHIAOTD 000°92Z6-985-78S

AJNIOV HIMOJ J118Nd NYOIHOIW 000'T08-985-785
ONI XdVY 000'108-985-78S
YIMOd gaSVHIYNd 985 3dag

SA2IAYAS TVLIdYI NOZVYINY 000°6¢6-585-78S
JONVNILNIVIN DNIGTINg 585 3daq

SADIAYIS TVLIdVI NOZVINY 000°ZE6-€85-28S
JYYMLIOS v3sa 000°0T6-€E85-T8S

NOSY3LLvd AlAva 000°0T6-€89-28S

NOSIMTV ‘SNDILYM 000'016-€85-T8S

JNI SINTLSAS NOILVINYOINI VLSIHY 000°006-€85-¢8S
INI SIW3LSAS NOILVINYOINI VLSIHY 000°'1S8-£85-C8S
00 INOHdIT3L YHLYMVIH-DLH 000°058-£85-78S
0D INOHJIT3L YHLYMVIH-DLH 000'058-£85-78%
131y 000°058-£85-78S

NOZI43A 000'058-£85-785

NOZIY3A 000°058-€85-785

NOZI¥3IA 000°0S8-£85-78S

NOZIY3IA 000'0S8-£85-789

NOZId3IA 000°058-€89-T8S

NOZIY3A 000°058-€85-78S

NOZig3A 000°058-€85-289

NOZIH3IA 000°058-€85-28S

NOZIH3A 000°058-£85-78S

NOZIH3IA 000°058-€89-785

NOZIY3IA 000°058-£85-28S

NOZIY3A 000°068-£85-28S

NOZRI3A 000°058-£85-78S

NOZIY3IA 000°058-£85-785



69
69
69
88'€El
69
6’9
69
7901
8901
8901
8901
LETT
LETL
1081
00°'¥S
00zt
00°00T
00'S€L
0s'Tze
0095
00'vS
vO'TEY
SL°06€
69°Ly
86°TS
§6'60C
0s'8
oo'szt
1433
0s'C
66'8TT
8¥'81
SL'8
[43:143
8665
6v'9
LL8T
L¥'1L
$8'987°T
08’61
88'6
€901
€E€TSL
SV'E

3IS30 €0000-2ESLL0TF6 YIAWNN LNNOJDV
530 £0000-ZESL20TF6 HITWNN LNNODIDY
»S30 £0000-Z£5££0T76 ¥IFNNN LNNODJIV
%530 €0000-2€SLL0TP6 YIAWNN LNNOJIY
353 £0000-ZESLLOZF6 HATWNN LNNOJDY
%530 £0000-2£5££02¥6 YIAWNN LNNODIIY
%530 £0000-7€SLL0TP6 YIFNNN LNNOJDY
530 £0000-ZESLL0ZP6 HITWNN LNNODIDY
713D - Z0000-ZESLLOTY6 YIAWNN LNNOIDV
130 - Z00OO-ZESLLOTY6 HIBWNN LNNODJDV
113 - ZO00O-ZESLL0ZF6 YIAWNN LNNOIDY
1130 - ZOO00-ZESLLOTYG YIGWAN LNNODIDV
113 - ZO00O-ZESLL0ZF6 YIAWNN LNNOIDV
XV4 TO0D0-ZESLL0TY6 YIBANNN LNNOJDV
STTdNYS HILYM ATHLNOW

$9IAsSIN

ONINVIID 31440

NIVINYILYM ONIVIT ILVAVIXIOUTAH
VI NIVINEILYM JAVH OL ANNO4/IvHILYT "dSNI
avi

SITdNVS YILYM ATHLNOW

SINYOAINN

/M SWYOLINN

SLOOENHOM

YYIMANYOM - DNIAVYL VHYHIIS

13N4/SvS

V113104 NOTIVO T

4N XovE 3ILOWIY TVNNNY

HoVa1g

HILYM

$HH2012 IWIL

S3dIM Or0D

SdVX QH XIH/SHIHSYM

314INS19 WNIQOS ‘ST INOZY

INVHOAH MO dove

1SSV 35Nd INIW

INITI3d34 500

SYINVITD/SYE IDVENVYD

SLNIOI/9NNdNOD

YALINILINN

Y3dvd

T8 WNIWIYd INNT

LINIWTIVLSNI LSHI4 - 0Z0T/T/L - 610Z/T/L WNIWIYd A21NOd
$33YIL3Y Y¥E0D

AINYOLLY 992 1daq 104 |eroL
IDIAAY YOI

HYIOVNVW ECTT-T62-906

W'A'Y TZ9T-T62-906

“W'H Z29T-162-906

/M LZ91-T62-906

INOOY DNILIFN EEIT-T6Z-906
JONVNI §Z9T-T62-906
TWHINID EEVE-E62-906

YT /M T895-€62-906
YIOVYNVIN 0ES0-T62-906

INA'Y 9090-T62-906

YH SS00-162-906

NYIININ 8090-T62-906
NVINININ 6T60-05-906

Xvd

IYNLIVHLNOD B TYNOISSII0¥d
IVNLIVYLNOD 8 IWNOISSIHOYd
IWNLIVHLNOD B TYNOISSIH0dd
IWNLIOVHLNOD B TVNOISSIH04d
IWNLOVHLNOD B TYNOISS3IH04d
TWNLOVYYLNOD B TYNOISSIH04d
TWNLOVHLNOD B TYNOISSIH04d
SIWHO4LINN

SIWHOLINN

SIWYOAINN

SIWHOLINN

YILYM - ISYIHD B 110 ‘SVO
3SYIHD B 110 ‘SYO

JYVMLIOS LI

S3MddNS ONILYHIO

$3I1ddNS ONILYYIJO

S3rddNS ONILYYIJO

5311ddNS ONILYYIJO

S3I1ddNS ONILVYIJO

$311ddNS ONILYHIJO

$3IMddNS ONILYYIJO

$3MddNS ONILYHIJO

$3NddNS ONILYYIdO

$311ddNS ONILYHIO

$3I1ddNS ONILYYIO

$311ddNS ONILYH3IdO

$311ddNS 321440

IDNVHNSNI 3411
NOILYSNIdIWOD ,SYINYOM
NOILVZVLIdSOH

woI

NOZIY3A

NOZIM3A

NOZIIIA

NOZI¥3A

NOZI¥3A

NOZIY3A

NOZIH3A

NOZI43IA

NOZIY3A

NOZIY3A

NOZI43A

NOZIY3IA

NOZIg3A

NOZIY3A

TIVH ALID VA 315 1INVS
SNOILLYDINNWINGDITIL IDONVH
YNV “dIvd

“ONI VIS AL SAV] LVIYO
TONITVIS AL SIAVT LVIYD
TVLIdSOH AOr AHYIEMIN NI13H
TIVH ALID JIMVIN 31S 1INVS
M3IIVSZLIY

ALIIVS Z1IY

Hd3SOf "A13AN

NOINN 1ia34D vI¥¥ NONIAVNOHYL
IVSHYIAINN AVMAIICS - XNVYE XIM
ONEINTYA OLNY S,ANNVQ
1HOR "L

VYOI ATIIHVY

VOI ATIIHVY

SAVIAYIAS TVLIdYI NOZVINY
AlddNS IVIYLSNANI A0
A1ddNS TYIVLSNANI MO

JNI SNDIMVH

SADIAY3AS TVLIdVI NOZVINY
ONIINTYA OLNY S,ANNVQ
INI 0D AL34VS NYIHLHON
INILIDIEYIN SOVIN
ANVdINOD A1ddNS ¥N.L3I
S3DIAY3AS TVLIdVD NOZVINY
S12NA0Yd 301440 TWNOILVYN
IHL ‘GYVANVLS

ANNA dINOD SYIIYOM TAIN
HLYON vv

000°0S8-9€5-165
000'058-9€5-165
000'058-9€5-165
000°058-9€5-165
000°058-9£5-T6S
000°058-9€9-16S
000°058-925-16S
000'058-9€5-16S
000°058-9€5-165
000'058-9€5-16S
000°058-9€5-16S
000°058-9€S-165
000'058-9€5-165
000°058-9€S-T6S
000°108-9£5-16S
000°108-9€S-16S
000'708-9€5-16S
000°T08-9€S-16S
000°T08-9€S-165
000°T08-9€5-16S
000'T08-9€5-16S
000°£9£-9€5-T65
000°£9/-9€S-16S
000°£9L-9E5-16S
000°£94-9€5-165
000°65/-9€5-16S
000°65£-9€5-T6S
002°TSL-9€5-T6S
00T°Z5L-9€5-16S
00T°ZSL-9€5-16S
00T°C5L-9€S-T6S
00T°ZSL-9€S-T6S
00T°ZSL-9€S-T6S
001°75£-9€5-16S
00T'Z8£-9€5-165
001°7SL-9€5-16S
00T°2SL-9€S-T6S
001°25£-9€5-16S
00T'2S£-9€5- 165
001°25£-9€5-165
000°7S4-9€S-T6S
000°92£-9€5-T65
000°SZL-9€5-T6S
000°6T£-9€S-T6S

INZLSAS ¥ILYM 9€6S 1dog

*'d ‘ONNANIM 18 WVHYHO ‘ONNOA

00¢'708-992-165

AINMOLLY 99Z 3dag
pund 4218\ T6S puny



LT

It'v68'9
98'Zv6'16

T'768'9

_mreeL9

00°'S8S

ST°T01
79'S9
ST'1S
09911
$9°GET
00°s¢
SLET
ET'EY

:spund ||y 104 [e3oL

punj 1212\ T6S puni
pung 5111993 78S pund
:s|e30) puny

punj 4318/ T6S Pund 104 [210]

W3LSAS ¥3LVM 9€S 1doq Jo4 |ejoL
HINNVIS/YIZINVOHO %530/SA¥VD ASS/SYOLINON
¥H ANV "NAVY “JONVNIZ - SHILNDINOD

JINAOW YAYQ dd N¥NLIY

£# dINNd 13N4

0Z/S '8 9T/S-+T/S 1IAVYL ONINIVHL YOd LNIINISYNGWITY
ONILNOIIV TVININNYIAOD

ONITIIg an

39vV150d an

LP9ETP000 LIV

£-80TZ¥000 LIV

INOHd LHDI/43LYM

AVILNO TYLIdYD

AVILAO TVLIAVD

JONVNILNIVIA 78 SHIVdIY STIDIHIA
FONVNILNIVIA '8 SHIVdIY STTIIHIA
. TIAVHL
1NZNOTIAIA TYNOISSIAONd
ONILNI¥d 8 ONIHSHENd

39V1S0d

SOI1LdO -43814 SLOAVINVT
LANHILNI SLOAVINYT

INOHdIT3L

S3DIAY3S VLIdVYD NOZVINY

AHOIE "L

INIINTVA OLNY S,ANNVQ
INIINIVA OLNY SANNYG

NOSITIV ‘SNINLYM

JUYMLI0S v8se

ONI SIWILSAS NOILYWHOANI VASIHY
ONI SINILSAS NOHLYWYHOAINI VISV
02 INOHdI1L YHLVMVIH-DLH

02 INOHdINIL VHIVMVIH-DLH
131V

000°€L6-9ES-T6S
000°€£6-9€5-T6S
000°¢€6-9€5-165
000'7£6-9£5-165
000°€T6-9£5-165
000°0T6-9€5-165
000'006-9€5-165
000'TS8-9€S-16S
000'058-9€5-16S
000°0S8-9€5-16S
000°058-9€S-16S



Lj/%f JW M Les Cheneaux Branch Mackinac Island Branch

P.0. Box 177 - 192 S Meridian St. P.0. Bex 534 — 534 Market St.

Main Office: Cedarville, MI 49719 * 906-484-2262 Mackinac Island, MI 49757 * 906-847-3732
P.o. B‘OX 187* 132_N9rth State 4Street, West Mackinac Branch Newberry Branch
St. Ignace, Michigan 49781 P.0. Box 142 - W11635 West U.S. 2 P.O. Box 466 —~ 1014 S. Newberry Ave
Vuice: 906-643-6800 Fax: 906-643-6308 Naubioway, MI 49762 * 906-477-6263 Newberry, MI 49868 * 906-293.5160
NEWBERRY WATER & LIGHT BOARD Date 5/31/19 Page 1 of 1
NEWBERRY SAVE THE BELLS ACCOUNT NUMBER

307 E MCMILLAN AVE
NEWBERRY MI 49868

MUNICIPAL MONEY MARKET

0

ACCOUNT NUMBER ; Statement Dates 5/01/19 thru 5/31/19
PREVIOUS BALANCE 12,225.22 DAYS IN STATEMENT PERIOD 31
CREDITS TOTALING .00 AVERAGE LEDGER BAL 12,225
DEBITS TOTALING .00  AVERAGE COLLECTED BAL 12,225
SERVICE CHARGE AMOUNT .00 Interest Earned 5.19
INTEREST PAID 5.19  Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.50%
CURRENT STMT BALANCE 12,230.41 2019 Interest Paid 27.93

*****************************************************************************

WEW

DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS

— DESCRIPTION o o e AMOUNT ................ |
- T 7757317 TTTINTEREST TPAID T 31 DAYS ’ . ©o 5197 e e s e
Y ]

*****************************************************************

DATE.......... BALANCE DATE.......... BALANCE ~rrrrremmene
* 5/01 12,225.22 5/31 12,230.41
[=]
o *****************************************************************************
0
- INTEREST RATE SUMMARY . . ..ottt ittt itss e i neeeneeee e e e
e DATE............. INTEREST RATE
N 4/30 .50%
o
[=3
(=}
-
:
[=]
o
MEMBER F.D.I.C. NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION " EQUAL HOUSING LENDER



Fiscally Ready Communities (FRC)

For Municipalities across the State of Michigan

MICHIGAN STATE
UNIVERSITY

dys. Michigan Department of

Extension STREASURY

For more information or to register: https://events.anr.msu.edu/FRC/
There will be ten FREE half day trainings throughout the state in 2019.

Introduction:

Program Dates and Locations
MSU Extension and the Michigan Department of Treasury are hosting |+ March 22 - East Lansing
half day trainings that will cover the fundamental best practices for fis- |« April 26 - Battle Creek

cal and operational planning. o May 21 - Roseville
« June 20 - Marquette
Takeaways: Best Practices for Sustainable Fiscal Health » July 18 - Traverse City

MSU Extension and Treasury will provide guides to attendees outlining * August 2 SHeUNERIgasant
= i o September 12 - Alpena

strong policies and procedures that each local government should im- October 16 - Flint

plement. These guides include a checklist to track what your local gov- | ° Eir e s

; « November 6 - Jackson
ernment already has, what you are working on, and future next steps.
y y S P o December 10 - Muskegon

Cost = FREE

Why should | attend? M E D C

Michigan communities have experienced fiscal instability for a number __ |
of reasons. This training will help you prepare for these challenges vi AN N
through fiscally sustainable best practices. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The foundation for fiscal stability is a well educated team and a strong governance structure to support
community needs, both now and into the future. Financial planning assists a local government with provid-

ing key services such as public safety, quality of life, and economic development. These are the principles
for creating and sustaining a vibrant community.

Additionally, the training will assist both elected and appointed local officials with creating a dynamic budg-
eting process that supports essential investments while addressing current and future challenges.

Who should attend?

« Municipal Appointed Officials (e.g. managers, administrators, financial officers,
business officers, etc.)

- Municipal Elected Officials (e.g. board and council members, mayors, supervisors,
trustees, clerks, etc.)




How to Determine your Community’s Fiscal Health:

This training will provide an understanding of your local unit's financial position. Participants will review
the debt burden as a future fixed cost, what debt can be used for, the relationship between debt and
population change, and financial balance sheets.

Budgeting:

o How to compare your community with other distin-
guished local budgets in Michigan.

« Understanding key financial variables, such as:

« The “rainy day fund”/fund balance/net posi-
tion.

« Understanding how the tax base provides
revenue.

+ Proposal A, the Headlee Amendment, and
understanding volatile revenue.

o Forecasting revenue and expenditures.

o How spending in the present will have an impact
on the future.

Contact us for more information

Eric Walcott, State Specialist Kayla Rosen, Departmental Analyst
Government and Public Policy Analytics and Outreach Section
MSU Extension Michigan Department of Treasury
Office: (617) 353-9106 Phone: (517) 335-7453

Cell: (616) 914-7124 Email: Rosenk1@michigan.gov
E-mail: walcott3@msu.edu

Shu Wang, Ph.D. Stacie Stonebrook, Senior Auditor
MSU Extension Audit Section

Phone: (517) 353-6979 Michigan Department of Treasury
E-mail: swang24@msu.edu Phone: (517) 335-2223

Email: StonebrookS@michigan.gov

MSU is an affirmative-action, equal-opportunity employer, committed to achieving excellence through a diverse workforce and inclusive culture that
encourages all people to reach their full potential. Michigan State University Extension programs and materials are open to all without regard to race,
color, national origin, gender, gender identity, religion, age, height, weight, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation, marital status, family status
or veteran status. Issued in furtherance of MSU Extension work, acts of May 8 and June 30, 1914, in cooperation with the U.S. Department of
Agriculture. Jeffrey W. Dwyer, Director, MSU Extension, East Lansing, MI 48824. This information is for educational purposes only. Reference to

commercial products or trade names does not imply endorsement by MSU Extension or bias against those not mentioned. Persons with disabilities have
the right to request and receive reasonable accommodations.



M:ch:gan Department of

‘TREASURY

Fiscally Ready Communities
Best Practices



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Contents
1.1 PONICIES N ProCEAUIES ......civiivurririitiie ittt es et ses ettt nse bt ee e s s s sae e esesanssasanennssersone 3
1.2 REGUIBLIONS. ..ttt ittt st sae e ve s e s e ss e sae s an s ebe et erent et annsssantatensesn sennensossanes 5
1.3 Operational Policies and ProCeAUIES..........ocvvvvvivirinririeniersessenieniensereerssrsssssessssesssesesssssessssnsssssessaseens 6
1.4 CaPTtal ASSEES ..viveiticimiiiteninte et e e ettt r £ ve s es et eas et eae st enesse s enebentobenesaes 7
1.5 FINANCIAI EAUCALION ...t rrnenen s re st s e s s b r b s reb s e s e s se s e saaransssbansnnnens 8
CONCIUSTON ...ttt st s v e et e e e b sh e sb e en e e s R e e aaeaesee s e et en bbbt eabensanbassnnsnsessennenes 9
BUABEL POLICY GUILE ...ttt ccerette sttt r st e e et s s ser s e s ensar e b e b e esbebeessesassanes 10
Budget Policy Guide ReVIEW Table.........c ettt vt eba e sssn s 12
Capital IMProvemMents GUILE ..ottt ettt tr e st e s e s saesaesees s se s e b e e sberhe s e e b erenbansensansans 13
Cash CoNtrols POLICY GUILE .......cocciceieeererieiccece et stresnscesse s e s e e e s s sasses e e e sesas e sesae saestessensabsatsestasans 15
Cash Controls Policy REVIEW Tabl@ .......c.cooiieiiiieeeeeete e bes e ssr s s oasesenesbesuessannan 16
Debt POHCY GUIE.....occiieiiiiiiiis ittt ettt et e re e eree e s s sn e e e st ent e eaer s s s an e e snasbnensant s 17
Grants POIICY GUIBE . c..ooiiiiiiiiiienerriercircteses ettt st esee s e e e e e e e s nessee s e sesrae b assbessbes s aesarebbaossasanses 20
Grants POlICY ReVIEW Table .. ..ttt see e sesesr et b e ae e sees e s sesens srnssssbeabesbenns 23
Internal Controls PONCY GUILE ......cc.vciiveeicie ettt sttt v ver s e sraesaesser s b e e sressn s snbo s sao s snns 24
Internal Controls POlICY REVIEW TADIE ....c.cceiieiiiiciieii ettt et e s ess e e essssae s eeessassenebessansnns 25
Purchasing and Procurement POLICY GUIJE......c.vciveiivcieiiiiriciiiniiss et iese st sassesseseesaessesnasesesensenaessensens 26
Purchasing Policy REVIEW Table c...ccuiciiniciininiarireianiniesieiienecitreere et ee et sesae e eese s eresebessneteseessessesnns 28
RECEIPHING POIICY GUILE...c.verrererereccrircenisrreereetennnestesesstesersasessesesbeeseetassbesbesssssssaessestensresnestessessennssnnenne 29
Receipting Policy Guide ReVieWw Table ...ttt svesteeses vt e e sseesnnesreesane 31
REFEIENCES .....ovcriii et s e sttt e b s e st et sn e st en st era e sansebensbeteserereen 32
2

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

1.1 Policies and Procedures

Best Practice 1.1 assesses a community’s financial structure by evaluating the policies and
procedures that have been set in place. These policies and procedures help to reduce the risk of
inefficiencies and fraud. Having clear purchasing, investment, and receipting policies ensures
uniformity across departments, simplifying accounting procedures. Additionally, it is important
for the local unit to review their financial position regularly to address changing circumstances
as they occur. For example, it is important to note the differences between the budgeted and
actual expenses and evaluate whether the budget needs to be amended. Sound budgeting is
important because any activity that exceeds budgeted expenditures is a violation of Public Act 2

of 1968, as amended.

Evaluation Criteria 1.1.1
General Policies and Procedures

Date Updated: March 2019

Expectations:

I Iy

sy |

The local unit has set in place strong cash controls.

The local unit has a Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).
Every local unit shall adopt an ethics policy.
Organization charts should be developed, and job
descriptions should be maintained.

The local unit shall have a grants policy.

Every local unit shall have a technology policy.

Every local unit shall have a vehicle use policy.

The local unit shall ensure that all financial transactions
are recorded in the accounting records and can be

substantiated with evidence (Department of Treasury,
2007).




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Expectations:

Evaluation Criteria 1.1.2

. . . O The local unit shall set in place strong purchasing
Purchasing Policies and Procedures

policies and procedures.

O The local unit shall establish a comprehensive written
investment policy, which should be adopted by the
governing body.

O The local unit shall adopt a credit card policy
(Department of Treasury, 2007).

O The local unit shall have an electronic payments policy
and limit ACH authorization.

C  Wire transfers should be limited.

O Checks must be restrictively endorsed (stamped for
deposit only) at the point and time of collection.

Expectations:

Evaluation Criteria 1.1.3

o O The local unit shall monitor their debt and prioritize
Budget Policies and Procedures

debt payments.

(0 The local unit shall complete a comprehensive formal
budget, as required by PA 2 of 1968, as amended.

O The local unit shall create a 5-year budget forecast.

O The local unit shall create a budget-to-actual report
and present the report to its governing body on a
quarterly basis (Department of Treasury, 2007)

O The local unit shall have a plan in place for managing
costs related to retiree healthcare and/or OPEB.

0 The local unit shall establish a formal policy on the
level of unrestricted fund balance that should be
maintained in the General fund.

o Treasury recommends that the local unit has
an unrestricted fund balance of no less than 2
months of regular General fund revenues or
expenditures after it considers its own
circumstances.

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

1.2 Regulations

Best Practice 1.2 assesses how well a community complies with federal, state, and local laws.
Local units of government should be familiar with the laws and know where to find additional
information, such as Public Act 2 of 1968. Local units of government must abide by Michigan
Department of Treasury standards, creating uniform reporting across similar local units.

Evaluation Criteria 1.2
Regulations

Date Updated: March 2019

Expectations:

O

The local unit of government must maintain the
following:

o The uniform chart of accounts
Controlled numbered official receipts
Controlled numbered official checks
Detailed receipt journal
Detailed disbursement journal

o General ledger
The local unit shall follow all federal, state, and local
laws.
The local unit shall follow all Michigan Department of
Treasury standards.
The local unit shall follow the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting
standards.
The local unit shall complete and submit a timely
annual audited financial statement (audit)
(Department of Treasury, 2007).
The local unit shall complete and submit a timely
Annual Local unit Fiscal Report (F65) (Department of
Treasury, 2007).
The local unit shall complete and submit a timely
deficit elimination plan, if applicable (Department of
Treasury, 2007).
The local unit shall complete and submit a timely
Qualifying Statement (Department of Treasury, 2007).
Cities, villages, and road commissions shall complete
and submit a timely Act 51 Road and Street Financial
Report (Department of Treasury, 2007).

0O 0 0 O




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

1.3 Operational Policies and Procedures

Best Practice 1.3 assesses a community’s internal controls, record keeping, and accounting.
Internal controls are necessary to protect the community from waste, misappropriation of
assets, and operating inefficiencies. They also ensure accuracy, timeliness, and reliability in
accounting and operating data. Having strict receipting policies, deposit ticket policies, and tax
collection policies, for example, leads to more effective monetary tracking.

Evaluation Criteria 1.3.1
Internal Controls

Expectations:

O

O

The local unit of government must maintain strong
internal controls.

The local unit shall review and reconcile records
routinely by someone other than the preparer to verify
that transactions are properly processed. This includes
accounts payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts,
and payroll.

The local unit shall follow statute and the local charter
regarding disbursement policies.

The local unit shall reconcile general ledger balances to
the financial statements (Department of Treasury,
2007).

Evaluation Criteria 1.3.2
Receipting and Accounting

Date Updated: March 2019

Expectations:

The local unit shall practice sound receipting policies.
Deposit tickets (or attached listing to the ticket) must
list checks by name or number, and amount.
o Deposits must be made timely and reconciled
to official receipts.
Tax collections must be deposited in a separate bank
account in the name of the Treasurer.




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

1.4 Capital Assets

Best Practice 1.4 assesses a community’s capital assets and the policies implemented to
protect, sell, or purchase capital assets. Each local unit shall have a written capital asset policy
that addresses asset capitalization and retirement. A six-year plan for capital expenditures is
necessary to properly budget for expenses. All capital expenditures must be approved by the
local unit governing body.

Expectations:

Evaluation Criteria 1.4

. 0 Local units shall have a written capital asset policy that
Capital Assets

addresses asset capitalization and asset

retirement/sale practices (setting a dollar threshold
and perhaps a useful life threshold).

O The purchase, addition, disposal, and sale of an asset
must have prior approval from the appropriate local
officials (Department of Treasury, 2007).

O The local unit shall adopt a policy to inventory and
assess the condition of all major capital assets.

{0 Capital expenditures shall be projected for at least six
years.

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

1.5 Financial Education

Best Practice 1.5 assesses how well a community’s staff are properly trained. The community
shall provide training, resources, and guidance for staff to successfully complete their duties.
This includes ensuring staff members have the proper certifications for their positions and are
continuing to take training courses when necessary or applicable. Providing training allows
employees to grow in their positions, leading to improved employee engagement.

Evaluation Criteria 1.5
Financial Education

Date Updated: March 2019

Expectations:

d

O

O

The local unit shall provide employees with the
appropriate training, guidance, and resources
necessary to carry out their duties and effectively
supervise staff members. This could include a formal
policy.

The governing body of the local unit shall have
appropriate training, guidance, and resources
necessary to carry out their duties.

New hires shall have the proper qualifications prior to
employment. For example, assessors should have the
appropriate certifications; accountants have
accounting degrees or applicable training or
experience; treasurer has been trained in receipting).
The local unit shall provide opportunities for
continuing education and professional development
{e.g. MGFOA, Treasury, MICPA).




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Conclusion

The Fiscally Ready Communities program was created to assist communities who want to establish,
measure, and maintain policies to increase operational and financial effectiveness and safeguards. This
document and the supplemental guides were created as tools to discuss the recommended process and
provide examples. Every community is unique, so the process and documentation should reflect the
different needs and capacities of the community.

The Fiscally Ready Communities program provides assistance to Michigan Communities who are
dedicated to ensuring their fiscal health through strong financial policies and protections. Local residents
can continue to watch their community improve and thrive, knowing that staff members are trained and
ready for success.

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices
Budget Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities Budget policy guide supplements the local government’s process of
establishing a budget. A detailed budget ensures that a local unit can maintain public services, while
planning for their future, creating fiscal responsibility.

Fiscally Ready Communities Budget Policy Recommendations

e It is recommended that the local unit adopt a 2-year budget annually in addition to your 5-year
forecast.

o This helps a local unit evaluate their revenue and expenditures as they plan for the long
term.

= This is especially important for local units with low fund balances that put them
at significant risk of unexpected changes in revenues and expenditures.

e |t is recommended that the local unit of government approve a budget for all major enterprise
funds.

o This is especially important for local units with low net positions or deficits within

enterprise funds that put them at significant risk of unexpected changes in revenues and
expenditures.

o Enterprise fund budgets must include budget depreciation.
e It is recommended that the local unit is fiscally conservative in the budgeting process.
o This includes overestimating expenditures and underestimating revenue to prepare for
unforeseen circumstances.
= This is important because any activity which exceeds budgeted expenditures is a
violation of Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended.
e [tis recommended that department heads participate during the internal budget process and
are prepared to answer questions during the budget presentation to the governing body.
Fiscally Ready Communities Budget Policies
The local unit shall have the following policies set in place:

e The local unit shall complete a 5-year financial plan, which includes an annual update.
o The detailed financial plan includes the following information:
= Department level revenues and expenditures.
= Revenue projections that are based on actual revenue received in recent years
and future assumptions that are justifiable.
= All debt service must be accounted for in the financial plan.
e The local unit shall not fail to pay principal of or interest on any
municipal securities when due or payable.
¢ The local unit shall project a balanced budget for the current and succeeding four fiscal years.
o The budget must not lead to a fund deficit and shall be in accordance with Public Act 2
of 1968, as amended.

e The budget should articulate priorities and issues for the budget cycle ~ this should describe
significant changes in priorities.

10
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

e The local unit should have procedures in place for amending the budget after it is adopted.
e The budget should explain long range financial plans and its effect upon the budget and budget
process (National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting, 1998).
® The budget should include the financial policies and goals of the local unit, including the local
unit’s definition of a balanced budget (National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting,
1998).
e The budget should explain the effects of existing debt levels on current operations.
e The budget should include goals and objectives of organizational units and departments. The
unit goals should be linked to the overall goals of the entity.
o This should also include when the goals and objectives are expected to be
accomplished.
¢ The budget should include funding the local unit’s pension and OPEB plans following Public Act
202 of 2017, when applicable.
o Each pension system should be at least 60% funded or have an approved corrective
action plan for each underfunded system.
o Each retirement healthcare system should be at least 40% funded or have an approved
corrective action plan for each underfunded system.
o The local unit shall report its defined benefit funding ratios using the uniform
assumptions established by the state Treasurer.
¢ The local unit shall review the Budget Manual created by Treasury on a regular basis because
the key to sound fiscal health of governmental units is proper accounting, budgeting, and
auditing of the local unit.
e The budget must be passed prior to the ensuing fiscal year.
¢ The local unit shall review GFOA’s recommended budget practices.
e The local unit shall review GFOA’s Detailed Criteria Location Guide.
e The local unit shall review the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, to compare their
budgets with other similar local governments.

11
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Budget Policy Guide Review Table

Please use the table below to consider whether your budget policy guide needs an overhaul or a refresh.
This document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number

Budget Policy

Yes

No

Explanation

1

The local unit annually updates a 5-year
forecast.

The local unit shall project a balanced budget
for the current and succeeding four fiscal
years.

The budget articulates priorities and issues for
the budget cycle, such as significant changes in
priorities.

The local unit has procedures in place for
amending the budget after it is adopted.

The budget explains long range financial plans
and its effect upon the budget and budget
process.

The budget contains the financial policies and
goals of the local unit, including the unit’s
definition of a balanced budget.

The budget explains the effects of existing
debt levels on current operations.

The budget includes goals and objectives of
organizational units, departments, and the
local unit as a whole.

The budget includes funding the local unit’s
pension and OPEB plans following Public Act
202 of 2017 and the uniform assumptions
established by the state Treasurer.

10

Treasury’s Budget Manual is reviewed on a on
a regular basis.

11

The budget was passed prior to the next fiscal
year.

12

GFOA’s recommended budget practices is
reviewed on a regular basis.

13

Review GFOA’s Detailed Criteria Location
Guide on a regular basis.

Date Updated: March 2019

12




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices
Capital Improvements Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities Capital Improvements policy guide supplements the local government’s
process of developing a Capital Improvements Plan.

Fiscally Ready Communities Capital Improvements

A Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) is required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008) for
all cities, villages and some townships. A CIP must be adopted annually and show public structures and
improvements in the order of their priority for the next six years. The recommendations outlined in the
CIP should be based upon goals and recommendations contained with the community master plan.

PA 33 of 2008 requires the local planning commission (unless locally exempted) to develop the CIP. If
the planning commission is exempted, then the legislative body or their designee must develop the CIP.
If a township owns (or jointly owns) a water supply or sewage disposal system, it must have a CIP.

Michigan State University Extension has a useful checklist for the adoption of a capital improvements
plan. Additional resources about a capital improvements plan can be found at MEDC’s Redevelopment
Ready Communities Capital Improvements guide (Michigan Economic Development Corporation, n.d.).

Recommended Capital Improvements Policies
¢ A policy stating that a CIP be developed and approved prior to adoption of the annual budget so
recommendations in the CIP may be prioritized for funding.

e A policy stating that the local planning commission and the legislative body must approve the
CIP.

13
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Flow Chart

Identify process and roles best suited for
community with available capacity

Kick off meeting (opportunity for public
involvement)

Department heads complete project
application forms

Policy group scores all project application
forms

Administrative team ranks projects based on
priority for community and available funding
and drafts capital improvements plan

Planning commission reviews and gives final
edits to administrative team (opportunity for
public involvement)

Planning Commission adopts the capital
improvements plan

Governing body accepts the capital
improvements plan

Governing body adopts the municiapl budget

Date Updated: March 2019

14



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices
Cash Controls Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities Cash Controls policy guide supplements the local government’s process
of developing cash controls. Cash Controls are essential to reduce the risk of inefficiencies and fraud.

Fiscally Ready Communities Recommended Cash Control Policies:

e The local government should perform ongoing cash flow analysis to ensure that they have
sufficient cash liquidity to meet disbursement requirements and limit idle cash.

o This can help governments recognize issues that might have a negative impact on their
cash position.

o Cash flow analysis is an essential tool for making informed management decisions.

o Local units of government should consider historical information and projected financial
activity, compare actual cash flow results with projections, make conservative
assumptions about cash receipts and disbursements, and monitor cash position daily.

= Common inflows include tax receipts, bond proceeds, utility payments, grants,
other revenue from fees and penalties, and maturities of all securities held in
investments that will mature during the forecast time frame.

= OQutflows represent anticipated payments such as debt service, employee
payroll or benefits, and payments to vendors for goods and services anticipated
during the forecast time frame.

®  Governments should also consider and accommodate non-repetitive payments
such as capital expenditures or expected legal settlements, using reasonable
assumptions.

o The accuracy of the cash flow forecast should be evaluated and updated at least
quarterly.

o A simple forecast often works best, while maintaining the reliability and accuracy of
information needed for making appropriate management decisions.

o The local government should compare actual cash flow results with projections and determine
the reasons for those differences in the analysis. The cash flow analysis depends on the
government’s size and complexity.

o This will impact its cash liquidity position, ensuring future cash flows are more accurate.

Fiscally Ready Communities Cash Controls Policies:
Key cash controls include:

e Bank reconciliations must be performed monthly (Department of Treasury, 2007).

o The accountant or bookkeeper shall reconcile the cash and investments recorded in the
general ledger to either the treasurer’s reconciliation (if it is adequately reconciled to
the bank statements) or to the bank statements directly.

e The local unit shall make conservative assumptions about both the cash receipts and
disbursement portions of the analysis, and update these assumptions regularly, as well after any
major changes in operations (e.g., a new debt issuance at the beginning of a fiscal year).

15
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

¢ The local unit shall monitor cash position daily to ensure sufficient liquidity.

e Cash should be physically secured and compared with control records. (Department of Treasury,
2007)

e The local unit shall attempt to segregate duties of custody via segregation policies. This will aid
in decreasing the probability of fraud or misappropriations of monies.

document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

o For example, cash collection and depositing should be performed by an employee who

is independent from the recordkeeping and bank reconciliation process. (Department of

Treasury, 2007)

Cash Controls Policy Review Table
Please use the table below to consider whether your cash control needs an overhaul or a refresh. This

Number | Cash Control Yes | No | Explanation

1 Perform bank reconciliations monthly.

2 Make conservative assumptions about both
the cash receipts and disbursement portions
of the analysis, and update these assumptions
regularly, as well after any major changes in
operations.

3 Monitor cash position daily to ensure
sufficient liquidity.

4 The local unit shall attempt to segregate
duties of custody via segregation policies.

5 Cash should be physically secured and
compared with control records.

Date Updated: March 2019

16




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Debt Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities debt policy guide supplements the local government’s process of
monitoring their debt. Debt management policies are written guidelines, allowances, and restrictions
that guide the debt issuance practices of local governments. A debt management policy should follow
state, federal, and local laws and improve the quality of decisions, articulate policy goals, provide
guidelines for the structure of debt issuance, prioritize debt payments, and demonstrate a commitment
to long-term capital and financial planning.

When a community adheres to their debt management policy, it shows rating agencies and the capital
markets that they are well managed and therefore are likely to meet their debt obligations in a timely
manner. Debt management policies should be written to meet the local community’s needs. Debt
management policies should be approved by the local unit’s governing body to provide credibility,
transparency and to ensure that there is a common understanding among elected officials and staff
regarding the local unit’s approach to debt financing. This policy should be reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure it is adhered to and updated when necessary.

Fiscally Ready Communities Debt Policies

At a minimum the debt policy should include the following:

e The local unit shall establish debt limits for each specific issuance or acceptable ranges for each

type of debt. Limits generally are set for legal, public policy, and financial reasons (Government
Finance Officers Association, 2012).

o Legal restrictions may be determined by:
= State constitution or law.
= Local charter.
®  By-laws.
®  Resolution or ordinance.
s Covenant.
= Bond referenda approved by voters.

o Debt policies shall address the internal standards and considerations within a

government. This may include:
= Purposes for which debt proceeds may be used or prohibited.
»  Types of debt that may be issued or prohibited.
= Relationship to and integration with the Capital Improvement Program (CIP).
»  Policy goals related to economic development, including use of tax increment
financing and public-private partnerships.

= Prioritizing debt payments.

o Financial limits often are expressed as ratios customarily used by credit analysts.

o Different financial limits are used for different types of debt. Examples of debt include:
= Direct Debt (including general obligation bonds} is subject to legal requirements

and may be able to be measured or limited by the following ratios:

17
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

e Debt per capita.
e Debt to personal income.
e Debt to taxable property value.
e Debt service payments as a percentage of general fund revenues or
expenditures.
= Revenue Debt levels often are limited by debt service coverage ratios (e.g.,
annual net pledged revenues to annual debt service), additional bond provisions
contained in bond covenants, and potential credit rating impacts.
= Conduit Debt limitations may reflect the right of the issuing government to
approve the borrower’s creditworthiness, including a minimum credit rating,
and the purpose of the borrowing issue.
= Short-Term Debt Issuance should describe the specific purposes and
circumstances under which it can be used, as well as limitations in term or size
of borrowing.
=  Variable Rate Debt should include information about when using non-fixed rate
debt is acceptable to the entity either due to the term of the project, market
conditions, or debt portfolio structuring purposes.

o The local unit shall establish debt structuring practices. The debt policy should include
specific guidelines regarding the debt structuring practices for each type of bond,
including:

= Maximum term {often stated based on the useful life of the asset(s) orin
absolute terms).

= Average maturity.

= Debt service pattern such as equal payments or equal principal amortization.

= Other structuring practices should be considered, such as capitalizing interest
during the construction of the project and deferral of principal, and/or other
internal credit support, including general obligation pledges.

o The local unit shall establish debt issuance practices. The debt policy should provide
guidance regarding the issuance process, which may differ for each type of debt. These
practices include:

= Selection and use of professional service providers, including an independent
financial advisor and a bond attorney, to assist with determining the method of
sale and the selection of other financing team members.

= (Criteria for determining the sale method (competitive, negotiated, private
placement) and investment of proceeds.

= Use of comparative bond pricing services or market indices as a benchmark in
negotiated transactions, as well as to evaluate final bond pricing results.

= Criteria for issuance of advance refunding and current refunding bonds.

= Use of credit ratings, minimum bond ratings, determination of the number of
ratings, and selection of rating services.

o The local unit shall establish debt management practices. The debt policy should
provide guidance for ongoing administrative activities including:

= |nvestment of bond proceeds.

18
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

=  Primary and secondary market disclosure practices, including annual
certifications as required.

= Arbitrage rebate monitoring and filing.

= Federal and state law compliance practices.

= Ongoing market and investor relations efforts.

o The local unit shall establish a policy for the use of derivatives. The Debt Management
Policy should clearly state whether or not the entity can or should use derivatives. If the
policy allows for the use of derivatives, a separate and comprehensive derivatives policy
should be developed (Government Finance Officers Association, 2015).

= For additional information see the following:
e GFOA’s Advisory.
o GFOA’s Developing a Derivatives Policy.
e GFOA’s Derivatives Checklist.

Debt Policy Review Table
Please use the table below to consider whether your debt policy needs an overhaul or refresh. This
document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number | Debt Policy Yes | No | Explanation
1 Establish debt limits for each specific issuance

or acceptable ranges for each type of debt.
2 Debt policies shall include the internal

standards and considerations within a
government (such as types of debt, purposes,
relationships with the capital improvements
plans, and policy goals).

3 The debt policy should include specific
guidelines regarding the debt structuring
practices for each type of bond.

4 Establish debt issuance practices that provide
guidance regarding the issuance process,
which may differ for each type of debt.

5 Establish debt management practices to
provide guidance for ongoing administrative
activities.

6 Establish a policy for the use of derivatives to

clearly state whether or not the entity can or
should use derivatives.

19
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices
Grants Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities grants policy guide supplements the local government’s process of
developing grants policies. Grants are a great way to increase funding for municipal projects and
programs; however, they often come with strict requirements. Failure to meet the requirements can
have negative consequences such as losing the funding and eligibility for additional grants. Therefore,
Fiscally Ready Communities recommends creating grants policies. These policies are essential to ensure
the local government can properly oversee grants and meet all the grant requirements.

Fiscally Ready Communities Grant Recommended Policies:
e The local unit should establish a grants administration committee to ensure there is proper
administrative and operational support.

o A grants policy should also include a requirement that the government obtains a
detailed understanding of the terms and conditions and how the grant will be
monitored.

o Examples of what should be required include establishment of procedures related to
(Government Finance Officers Association, 2013):

= The development of a project plan that would include how new programs or
activities funded by the grant would be implemented and who would be
responsible for implementation.

®  The provision of training for those responsible for the grant, so they can
effectively carry out their roles.

= Terms and conditions for grant-funded personnel, such as severance and
unemployment costs related to employees who are terminated upon expiration
of the grant or operating and maintenance costs for assets that are acquired.

= The system/process that will be used to charge expenses against the grant and
to obtain reimbursement.

= |dentify the individual/department responsible for carrying out the grant and
ensure that proper resources are available to support that grant.

e The local unit should promote your grant on your website and social media, if applicable.

Fiscally Ready Communities Grant Policies
Key grant policies include:

o A policy on identifying, applying, approving, and monitoring to grants.

o A grants policy should require that the department or agency seeking a grant provide
advance notice to the appropriate authority, such as finance and/or the local board, so
that the effects on the government can be reviewed and understood beforehand
(Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).

= Grants could affect the budget, cash flow, procurement requirements, financial
reporting, compliance requirements, or legal requirements (Government
Finance Officers Association, 2013).

20
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

o Grant development opportunities may include, but are not limited to, partnerships with
foundations; corporate philanthropy; and state, federal and local agencies.

e A policy on ensuring grants align with the strategic goals of the municipality (Government
Finance Officers Association, 2013).

o Agrants policy should include a requirement for assessing the extent to which a grant is
consistent with the government’s mission, strategic priorities, and/or adopted plans
(Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).

o Accepting a grant that is not consistent with the overall strategic direction of a
government creates the risk that the government will spend its own funds to support a
grant inconsistent with overall strategic direction or commit the government to own-
source spending beyond the grant period (Government Finance Officers Association,
2013).

e A policy on conducting a funding analysis (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).

o The grants policy should require a multi-year cost/benefit analysis prior to application or
acceptance (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).

o The analysis should include (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013):

= matching funds (and whether or not they will need to be set aside) and any
other direct costs associated with a grant, the extent to which overhead costs
will be covered.

= in-kind contributions.

= audit and close-out costs.

= and potential costs that might need to be incurred by the government beyond
the grant period.

= The analysis should also explore whether a grant requires that general revenues
or a line of credit or grant anticipation notes be used to cover the gap between
cash being expended and the reimbursement that is received by the
government,

» Prior to renewal or grant continuation, the grant should be evaluated.

o The grants policy should require an evaluation of the impacts of the grant-funded
program or asset prior to deciding whether to continue a grant at the end of the initial
grant period (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).

= (Creating outcome measures before receiving a grant will help the government
to determine the extent to which the grant program or asset has produced
desired benefits (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).
e Such an analysis should also include a review of actual costs and the
potential benefits of using general revenues associated with the grant
for other purposes (Government Finance Officers Association, 2013).
¢ The local unit shall establish a way to monitor grant progress and ensure that all reporting
deadlines are met {(Government Finance Officers Association, 2015).

o Based on the grant period, there should be multiple reviews of the budget, progress,

and goals of the grant. These could occur monthly, weekly, etc.

21
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

e The local unit shall establish clear lines of communication for all parties involved in the grant.
o Develop ongoing communication and knowledge of grantors, and grant partners.
o Develop an ongoing dialogue with financial statement, single audit, and program
auditors concerning grant reporting and compliance.
o Develop processes to ensure that quality, supportable information is utilized in grant
decision making.
e Review GFOA's Internal Controls for Grants.

Date Updated: March 2019

22



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Grants Policy Review Table

Please use the table below to consider whether your grants policy needs an overhaul or refresh. This
document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number | Grants Policy Yes | No | Explanation
1 A policy on identifying and applying to grants.
2 A policy on ensuring grants align with the
strategic goals of the municipality.
3 A policy on conducting a funding analysis of

the grant that includes a multi-year
cost/benefit analysis.

4 The grants policy should require an evaluation
of the impacts of the grant-funded program or
asset prior to deciding whether to continue a
grant at the end of the initial grant period.

5 Establish a way to monitor grant progress and
ensure that all reporting deadlines are met.

6 Establish clear lines of communication for all
parties involved in the grant.

7 Promote your grant if applicable on your

website and social media.

Date Updated: March 2019

23




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Internal Controls Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities internal controls policy guide supplements the local government’s
process of establishing internal controls. Internal control policies are written guidelines, allowances, and
restrictions that aid in ensuring efficient and effective operation of a local government. It is the
responsibility of appropriate elected officials to ensure that the managers who report to them fulfill
their responsibilities in implementing and maintaining a sound and comprehensive framework of
internal control (Government Finance Officers Association, 2008).

Internal Controls protect resources against waste, misappropriation, and inefficiency. Additionally,
internal controls enable a local government to sustain and improve their performance by adapting to
changing environments, mitigate risk to acceptable levels, and support sound decision making.
Moreover, internal controls ensure accuracy, timeliness, and reliability in accounting and operating data.

Fiscally Ready Communities recommended policies

Every local unit of government should evaluate the cost versus benefit of adhering to the polices listed
below. At a minimum, it is recommended to have the following policy:

¢ Attempt to segregate duties of custody via segregation policies (Department of Treasury, 2007).

Fiscally Ready Communities required policies
At a minimum, the internal control policies shall include the following:

e A policy about the job descriptions of all key personnel.
o For example, the treasurer must do the following:
= Maintain control of all bank accounts.
= Keep track of the total cash and investments allocable to each fund.
= Reconcile these amounts to each month’s bank statements in a timely manner.
o A policy that states who is authorized to approve transactions (Department of Treasury, 2007).
o This includes ensuring transactions are authorized by a person with delegated approval
authority.
o Transactions shall require two signatures on each check, which designates approval for
disbursement of funds (Department of Treasury, 2007).
®  The signatures should be the treasurer and clerk or their deputies.
e If the treasurer and clerk are the same person, then the controller or
finance director should be the second signature.
e If the treasurer, clerk, and finance director are the same person than the
CEO or Manager should be the second signature.

24
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

= Some municipalities may also be required to have two signatures on each check by
charter.

A policy that forbids signing blank checks (Department of Treasury, 2007).
A policy that outlines the appropriate documentation that must be attached to support invoices and
disbursements (Department of Treasury, 2007).

o Original bills should be used for documentation when applicable.
It is important to have a separate staff member be responsible for the recordkeeping of
transactions.
The governing body should approve all internal control policies and disbursements (Department of
Treasury, 2007).
A policy that ensures checks are not returned to the originating office for distribution (Department
of Treasury, 2007).
The local unit of government shall review the Department of Treasury’s Accounting Procedures
Manual.

o Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended, requires each local unit to adhere to the Department of

Treasury’s Accounting Procedures Manual.

Samples of Internal Control policies can be found on GFOA's website.

Internal Controls Policy Review Table

Please use the table below to consider whether your internal controls policies needs an overhaul or
refresh. This document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number | Internal Controls Policy Yes | No | Explanation

1 A policy regarding who can authorize
transactions.

2 A policy that states who is authorized to
approve transactions.

3 A policy that forbids signing blank checks.

4 A policy about transactional recordkeeping.

5 A policy listing the detailed job description of
all elected officials.

6 A policy on controlling bank accounts, tracking
cash and investments, and timeliness of
reconciling accounts.

7 Governing body approval of internal controls
and disbursements.

8 Adhering to the Department of Treasury’s
Accounting Procedures Manual on Internal
Controls.

25

Date Updated: March 2019




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Purchasing and Procurement Policy Guide

The Fiscally Ready Communities purchasing policy guide supplements the local government’s process of
developing public purchasing guidelines. Purchasing policies are essential to reduce the risk of
inefficiencies and fraud. Purchasing policies protect local units of government from paying excessive
above market costs for services, conflicts of interest, and inappropriate and illegal transactions.

Fiscally Ready Communities
At a minimum the purchasing and procurement policy shall include the following:

A local unit shall adopt, review, or update its purchasing policy, if the local unit does not
have one, or it has not been updated in over a year.
o The purchasing policy should include the date it was updated and that it has been
approved for use by the local governing body.
o The policy should include different procedures based on the total cost of the project
(i.e. purchases under $2,000; purchases between $2,000-$9,999; purchases over
$10,000, etc.) (Traverse City, 2016).
= This should include competitive bidding for purchases over a specific dollar
amount.
o The purchasing policy should include a detailed plan of action if two or more bids
are equivalent, including who makes the decision and how (Bay City, n.d.).
A local unit shall adopt a conflict of interest policy to ensure purchases are responsible and
ethical. This includes confirming that all supplies and equipment are purchased with the
intent and outcome to ensure best price, quality, and value.
A local unit shall adopt an equal access and non-discrimination purchasing policy (City of
Charlevoix, n.d.).
o This should include a process for reporting instances of noncompliance and
evaluations of those noncompliance items (Boyne City Government, n.d.}.
= This could include group review of reports with the ability to make
necessary changes and actions.
A local unit shall adopt a detailed travel and expense reimbursement policy (Bay County,
2016).
o This includes updating the mileage reimbursement rates yearly.
=  When employees use their own vehicle and request the full mileage rate,
they should document why they did not use the municipality’s vehicle, as
well as have their supervisor sign and date the document.
o Communities should have a uniform submission process for all employees to fill out.
o The travel and expense reimbursement policy should include:
»  Meals broken down by breakfast, lunch, and dinner.
= | odging expenses, including maximum reimbursement.
A local unit shall adopt a section about being exempt from local, state, and federal excise tax
and provide the necessary documents to any vendor upon request (Bay County, 2016).

26

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

e Alocal unit shall ensure that the authorized person who approves each invoice or request
for payment has adequate knowledge and responsibility (e.g. educational background
and/or professional certifications in purchasing and procurement).

e Alocal unit shall make contracts and the contracting process publicly available (City of
Lansing, n.d.) (Traverse City, 2016).

Good purchasing policy examples can be found on MML's website.

Date Updated: March 2019

27



Please use the table below to consider whether your purchasing policy needs an overhaul or refresh.

Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Purchasing Policy Review Table

This document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number | Purchasing Policy Yes | No | Explanation

1 A policy regarding the preference for
purchasing goods and services from businesses
within their jurisdiction.

2 Different procurement policies based on the
total cost of the project.

3 A detailed plan of action if two or more bids are
equivalent, including who makes the decision
and how.

4 A conflict of interest policy.

5 An equal access and non-discrimination
purchasing policy.

6 A detailed travel and expense reimbursement
policy that includes mileage, meals, and
lodging.

7 Tax exemption from local, state, and federal
excise tax.

8 Formal procurement policy.

9 Policy for requests for proposals (RFPs).

Date Updated: March 2019

28




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Receipting Policy Guide

Fiscally Ready Communities supplements the local government’s process of establishing receipting
policies. Having a detailed receipting policy ensures that a local unit can accurately account for all
existing cash and follow the money trail.

Fiscally Ready Communities
The local unit should have the following policies set in place:

There must be a record of each individual cash transaction.

Receipt books issued to other departments must be accounted for numerically.

The use of generic or “dime store” receipts is strictly prohibited.

The method of payment must be indicated on the receipt (cash, check, or credit card).
The receipt should include the following 10 requirements:

1.

© W NGV AW

The date of the transaction.

The dollar amount received.

The type of payment (cash, check, credit cards, etc.).

The purpose (garbage, labels, taxes, parcel number, etc.).
The payer.

The department receiving the cash.

The person accepting the cash.

The receipt number if applicable.

Invoice number if applicable.

10. The account number the cash is being deposited into.
The receipt must allow for accurate revenue account classification in conformity with the
Uniform Chart of Accounts.
Checks must be restrictively endorsed (stamped for deposit only) at the point and time of
collection.

Bank signature cards should be kept current and the authorized signers limited (Department of
Treasury, 2007).

When cash is collected, the following policies shall be used:

e}

Formal evidence must be created for each collection (such as sequentially numbered
cash receipt ticket, cash register receipt, etc.) and provided to payors where applicable.
The system must include controls to ensure that every receipt is to be included in the
cash receipts journal. This includes the 10 receipt requirements noted above.
= Asgeneral guidance, the cash receipts journal is maintained by the treasurer.
= Each receipt is posted to the receipt journal in numerical order to the proper
bank account, fund, and revenue account.
® |n a manual system, monthly totals by fund are posted from this journal to the
general ledger revenue control account, which is the responsibility of the clerk.

29

Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

o Each bank deposit (evidenced by a bank deposit slip or other documentation) must be in
agreement with the cash receipts and the deposit slip (or other bank deposit support).
Total currency collected must be in agreement between these two sources.

o Deposits are required to be deposited in a reasonable timeframe (daily) (Department of
Treasury, 2007).

» |ninstances where the amount of cash on hand is minimal, deposits may be
made less frequently (weekly).
= Undeposited funds should be secured in a locked place such as a safe or vault.

o Money to be deposited should be counted and reconciled to the summary of cash
collections to be sent to the accountant or bookkeeper.

» If there is a difference, a “cash overage/shortage” account should be used.
= Never make up the difference from cash in the change drawer.

o The change drawer should never be used to cash personal checks.

o The treasurer must provide the accountant or bookkeeper a record of all money
received and the purpose of the amounts received (such as the budgeted revenue
account or the receivable account).

= This may be done in summary form (example: department transmittal advices)
or by individual receipt.

o The treasurer is responsible for all cash receipts, unless the authority has been
delegated to another official in a home rule city or village.

= If any employees other than the treasurer (or delegated official) of the local unit
receive cash, they must do so with the approval of the treasurer and in
accordance with ali cash handling policies.
e All financial institutions used as depositories, must be approved by the governing body
(Department of Treasury, 2007).

30
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

Receipting Policy Guide Review Table

Please use the table below to consider whether your receipting guide policy needs an overhaul or
refresh. This document has been built so you can track where you are in the process.

Number

Receipting Policy

Yes

No

Explanation

1

A policy requiring a record of each individual
cash transaction.

A policy requiring numeric receipt books issued
to other departments.

A policy prohibiting the use of generic or “dime
store” receipts.

Receipts should include the date of the
transaction; the dollar amount received; the
type of payment (cash, check, credit cards,
etc.); the purpose (garbage, labels, taxes, parcel
number, etc.); the payer; the department
receiving the cash; the person accepting the
cash; the receipt number if applicable; invoice
number if applicable; and the account number
the cash is being deposited into.

The receipt must allow for immediate revenue
account classification in conformity with the
Uniform Chart of Accounts.

Checks must be restrictively endorsed
{stamped for deposit only) at the time of
collection.

Formal evidence must be created for each
collection and provided to payors where
applicable.

The system must include controls to ensure
that every receipt is to be included in the cash
receipts journal.

The cash receipt is maintained by the
appropriate individual.

10

A policy ensuring deposits are deposited in a
reasonable timeframe.

11

Deposited money should be counted and
reconciled to the summary of cash collections
to be sent to the accountant or bookkeeper.,

12

A policy to ensure the change drawer should
never be used to cash personal check.

13

Have policies that ensure the treasurer has the
appropriate responsibilities for handling cash
and financial records.

Date Updated: March 2019

31




Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

References
Bay City. (n.d.). Local Purchasing Preference Policy. Retrieved from Bay City:

https://www.baycitymi.org/DocumentCenter/View/743/Local-Purchasing-Preference-
Policy?bidld=

Bay County. (2016, November 1). Purchasing Policies. Retrieved from https://www.baycounty-
mi.gov/Docs/Purchasing/PurchasingPolicyFinal2016.pdf

Boyne City Government. {n.d.). Polices. Retrieved from Boyne City, Michigan Where Life meets Lake:
http://www.cityofboynecity.com/policies-60/

City of Charlevoix. (n.d.). Bids & Request for Proposals. Retrieved from The City of Charlevoix:
http://www.cityofcharlevoix.org/information-services/bids-request-proposals.html

City of Lansing. (n.d.). How We Buy. Retrieved from Lansing Michigan's Capital City:
https://www.lansingmi.gov/788/How-We-Buy

Department of Treasury. (2007, July). ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR LOCAL UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT IN MICHIGAN. Michigan.

Department of Treasury. (2007, July). ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR LOCAL UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT IN MICHIGAN. MICHIGAN.

Department of Treasury. {2007, July). ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR LOCAL UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT IN MICHIGAN. Michigan.

Department of Treasury. (2007, July). ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR LOCAL UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT IN MICHIGAN . Retrieved from Michigan Department of Treasury:
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/AccountingProceduresManual_202967_7.pdf

Goverment Finance Officers Association. (2012, October). Revenue Control Policy. Retrieved from GFOA:
http://www.gfoa.org/revenue-control-policy

Government Finance Officers Association . (2015). GFOA Detailed Criteria Location Guide Distinguished
Budget Presentation Awards Program . Retrieved from GFOA:
http://www.gfoa.org/sites/default/files/BudgetDetailedCriterialocationGuideFY2015.pdf

Government Finance Officers Association. (2008, October). Internal Control and Management
Involvement. Retrieved from GFOA: http://gfoa.org/internal-control-and-management-
involvement

Government Finance Officers Association. (2010, March 5). GFOA ADVISORY. Retrieved from GFOA:
http://www.gfoa.org/sites/default/files/GFOA_usedebtderivativesBP.pdf

Government Finance Officers Association. (2012, October). Debt Management Policy. Retrieved from
GFOA: http://www.gfoa.org/debt-management-policy

Government Finance Officers Association. (2013, June). Best Practices Related to Debt Management and
Debt Issuance. Retrieved from GFOA: http://kern.org/finance/wp-

32
Date Updated: March 2019



Fiscally Ready Communities Best Practices

content/uploads/sites/26/2013/10/GFOA-Best-Practices-Debt-Management-Issuance-June-
2013.pdf

Government Finance Officers Association. (2013, February). Establishing an Effective Grants Policy.
Retrieved from GFOA: http://www.gfoa.org/establishing-effective-grants-policy

Government Finance Officers Association. (2015, September ). Internal Control for Grants. Retrieved
from GFOA: http://www.gfoa.org/internal-control-grants

Government Finance Officers Association. (2015, January). Use of Debt-Related Derivatives Products.
Retrieved from GFOA: http://www.gfoa.org/use-debt-related-derivatives-products

Government Finance Officers Association. (n.d.). DERIVATIVES CHECKLIST . Retrieved from GFOA:
http://www.gfoa.org/sites/default/files/u2/debtderivschecklistfinal.pdf

Michigan Economic Development Corporation. (n.d.). Capital Improvements Plan Guide. Retrieved from
https://www.miplace.org/globalassets/media-documents/rrc/rrc-best-practices.pdf

Michigan Economic Development Corporation. (n.d.). REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES® (RRC).
Retrieved from https://www.miplace.org/communities/rrc/

MICHIGAN FINANCIAL REVIEW COMMISSION ACT. (2014). Act 181 of 2014. Michigan. Retrieved from
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/{S{guptemvnjg0l1n15yotlwag0))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&o
bjectName=mcl-Act-181-0f-2014

Michigan Municipal League. (n.d.). Purchasing Policies. Retrieved from Michigan Municipal League We
love where you live.

National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting. {(1998). Recommended Budget Practices: A
Framework for Improved State and Local Government Budgeting. Retrieved from Government
Finance Officers Association:

http://www.gfoa.org/sites/default/files/RecommendedBudgetPractices. pdf

Traverse City. (2016). PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING. Retrieved
from CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY:

http://www.traversecitymi.gov/downloads/purchasing_policy_july_2016.pdf

33
Date Updated: March 2019



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY

VILLAGE OF
(IR} » 1}

; S
L ] EARITAL BF WIEWIREN

302 East McMillan Avenue, Newberry, Ml 49868 Phone: 906-293-3433 Fax: 906-293-8890

NEWBERRY WATER AND LIGHT
JOSEPH LIVELY, FOREMAN REPORT
MAY 2019

e Seasonal Turn Ons

e Meter Reading

e Miss Digs

e Baci Samples

e Consumer Confidence Report

e Brushing (Primary)

e New Elec. Service Hookups (3)
e Repaired Water Leak (N. Line)

e Disconnects For Nonpayment (7)
¢ Flushing



J1LIL SIXVY

61-230 6T-AON 61-120 61-43S 61-5NV 6T-1NT 6T-NNT 6T-AVIA

6T-4dV

6T-dVIN 67-934 6T-NVI

J1LIL SIXVY

QTS91I9S @ STSAIAS w HTSALIDS m CTSALISS W ZTSILAS @ TTSILIIS M OTSBLIIS W 65914S M §SIIIS W £SBIIS M 9SADS i GSOLIIG M FSIIIS W £SAIBS m TSINIS @ TSALSS |

1HO9IT 8 431VM

SvioL

G3AONOJS3Y LON SVH 666

AIHINDIH ONIAUYIN-NDISIA €02

@3131dWOD NSVL-NDISIA 202

SAILNOVA NSVL-NDISIA 102

Q31IINYO ETO

ONDIYVIA INOY4 1dIN3XT 0T0

QIIND3Y ONILYIOT TYNOLLIAAY 600

Q3¥IND3Y LON ISNOJSIY ALITIDVA BOD

Q3LITdINOD XHOM 40 3OS QILVLS £00

VIV HYOM 0L SSI30V ON-QIHYVA LON 900

NOILYNIGH00D ONIOD NO 500

NOILYAYX3 ONIYNG 3LIS NO A3HINDIY ALINILN-UINYYIWN $00

3131dINOJ LON €00

144 9

ABAYYIN 200

1D114NO3 ON T00

ONIGN3d ISNOd$3Y 000

61-220 61-AON 610 61-das | g1-8ny 6T-Inr GT-unf 6T-Aely 6T-1dy

6T-JeN

81-924

6T-uer

S910 SSIA

YR b LRaiaw) VpRER

40 39YTIA
|

$91a SSIN
1HOIT ANV 43LVM

610Z Aep
sb1q ssIN

Wb B 183eM




1S'2E0T %Evy | 6029 8/'685°G9S ¢ [139an9 Y04 A3a3IN ONINIVINIY LYO'TE
%IP TTYIT'L8E $ |alva ol a3tg
09 40 % TLYIT'i8€ S | 00°008°TS6 S |Tv09
- %0°0 0 00'00v'6L $ 0 0 61,030
- %0°0 0 0000v'6L $ 0 0 6T, AON
- %00 0 00'00¥'6L S 0 0 6T, 100
- %0°0 0 00°00v'6L S 0 0 6T, Ld3S
- %0°0 0 00'00¥'6Z $ 0 0 6T, ONY
- %0°'0 0 00'00¥'6L $ 0 0 6T, AINC
- %00 0 o0'0ov'6L S 0 0 6T.INNT
8602z S | 02'6T0T %C L6 89¢7L 9T'06T°LL s | oo'oov'eL S 897/ 00089Z. 89¢'L 6T, AVIN
€6'vZ6T ¢ | 00'EE0’T %9'L6 1'66€9 LOSLY LL $ | o0'00V'6L S 1'66€9 00T66£9 1669 | 6T, UdV
0£°S/8T § [ 99°€€0T %9°L6 ¥'STE9 0LVTS'LL S | oo'oov'6L S ¥'STE9 00PSTE9 ¥SIE9 | 6T, UVIN
TLvet‘e ¢ | ¥E0E0'T %E'L6 £'9819 60'SLT'LL S | 00'00V'6L S €'98T9 00£98T9 £€981°9 61,934
00°TS9'T S | S9'9€0°T %6°'L6 '8L8Y 00'6VLLL s | o0oov'6L $ 7'848Y 00Z8.8Y 78.8Y 6T.NVI
ED V0D
INNIAY yOd S5O aanig sivo ¥o4 @itg s S1v9 S,000T 000°000°T X 39vdWINd | HINOW
1501 aana

610 A_Al - 1oday 98edwing 4938
W3 18 s21eM




[4)

T

o1

0

~

@

<

n

©w



9'5ZHT SHALIW IOVHIAY
St'6LSET ymy IvL0L
97085V €T #'009T  |ET'#¥90T 9ET'LELIT ST 8T866Y T 860YE 8T ¥STS 8°L07 '662182 ¥BE'S6LTL 876'636 THO'PLOET 8°68TT  |9CLIEE6T DAY
€T°0I6'TL  $ |00°S9 002008 | s9'0zz’es  $ | 89°GBI'EET  § [00'SL 0006066¥C | TL06v'0LT S | 26'022°9T $ |00°6E0T |00°L6V90VT | Z6'9L6'€9E  $ |¥9'6V6V TT0LE'SI $ |ooeves  |00°€985996 V101
23a
AON
120
1d3S
9Ny,
nr,
NI
EPOT9'YT  § €T 00'S09T || £0'6€S'8 S | £8'066°9Z S |sT 00°60¥CTS LO'EEE'TE s | sgzov'y $ |L0z 00'060£92 06'9£0'T9 $ | 2Z00€8  $ | 68°0EL'S S |e811 00'tPZE8S AV
89°ZS9%T & |€T 00°0T9T | 0Z'0Z6'L S | 65'8LY'YT S |sT 00'85tb9Y | ZZ'019'0E S| L8v9Er  § 102 006£809T | 15°020'2. S| 69'86  $ | SEELYTT S 8811 00'8582£89 Hdv
1S9Y9PT S |€1 00'0T9T | LT'ZST'8 § | 6£°ZEE'ST S |stT 00'TEL08Y | ¥6tHO'PE S| svrs'y  $ Loz 00'cobbLT | SEL02'99 S | Lv'668 S| vLWPS'OT S |96TT 00'BZZZEY YV
SE9S9YPT S (€T 000T9T | 09°€82°2T §$ | 9T'SHT'ST s [sT 00'TYE6SYy | 64°49T'bE S | 90'v98's  § [80Z 00'Z8bSLZ | 05'SOF'BL S | SE'TBOT S | 8¥°L1Z°9T S |881T 00°52Z8S¢ g34
ST'WVETT  § |ET 00°295T | 19'628'sT $ | £9°8€9'TE S |sT 00'TSST8S | 69'VEE0Y s | 99200 §|oTZ 00'€8S8ZE | 99'992'68 S | ST'O9T'T | ST'E0V'LT $ |881T 00°80EVT8 NYT
aanig LY M a3amig LAY [ aInig Ly rav 1and M a378 LAY asve rav13nd M 6102
QNvW3aa S¥ILIN | ANVINIG | rav13nd 91 SHILIN 9 73 23 SH3LIN 73 ¥l 03 3 SY3L1IN 43
AaNVIN3a HIMOd 394UV IVIDHINWINOD . TVILN3AIS3Y

ONITHE / NOILdJWNSNOD J1¥13313 - 810C




SLAON 6120 ahd3s 61,00 &L 1Nt LAY aLudv T, UV .93 TN 1
w0y
i
i
— N o 000000007 w
00'0000002 '
_ ha 0'D00a00E
!
i 00'00000%
BFEBILL
M 000000005
!
[ 000000008
i wny H
EB'0LOGE ¢ [ 15°€06'000°T 98°LEBBT T €6'LEVY6R'T 5 | vO'LET TUoT ¢ | veesn'eLy 65'520°02 Ov"60L'09 $ | 25°11Z%6 § [ ee'see 06'068°88¢ § [ £0'909'z86 S | ET016'2L 00°S5296YZ2
v e
L9'798'L5T 09'6YE 81T 06°LSL EZT 5 | 99°'68S 201 - 61,030
(A5 Tac] 00'LZ6 QT SO'TYO PTIT 5 | LrTie'se = 6T, AON
5'9v6 22T 7L9ST L0t 19'29L'L6 28260 8 - 61, L0
£9'ST5 €6 S0'ZTE8 ST 6T°LT9 86 T9'01L58 i 6T, d38
6T'PI8 55 92'956 81T 9S'ETO 0T £8'08Y STT = 61, 9NV
EB'ESY VL 96°9%5 09 06'ST6 ZOT 65'95L 06 - 6L, NM
£8'Z08 12T L9616 90T 8T'969 €01 SS0STZ8 = 6T NI
£1'660 SPT 0b'988' 12T 9OT'6LE 86 DO'BEE 66 CO0ST'LL 88TPTCT 3'800'59 EVTYS9LT £¥'0T9 T Q0'2606ZTH BT AYN
ET'20L PTT 16°'59¢ 86 00'p6 90T ST'956'90T E8'EL0 6 95°500 & 88°TFT 2T E¥'Ls 96'B98 L L0°L8€ 98T 29'269 T 00'98T8CEY 6T, ¥dV
62567 SET £6°08L 0ET YETIV PTT 06’9778 86'85266 LLTT0S 88'TPT 2T €TSOTE 95'88 YS'OTY 6L LETHTEBT TS'9P9 ¥T 00789ty 6T, YW
€5'VZE 89T 86559 20T ¥9'86E TIT SS' Y8 61T ZE'060 00T 86'TVE ¥ 88 TP LT OE'0EBZ 8S'6E 8o'SET 08 €2°9£0'20Z SE'959'¥T Q0ETLL95Y 61,834
8889 9T ¥B'6ZZ 0T VL7EE 0LT €549 62T ET'066 60T 8T'Y90S 88'TPT ZT 66'GLZ € 0€'0F 89'/9v 68 £6'8TY 0ET STHYE ¢T 00°0ZPrZS 6T, NVT|
KQIAVS *d ST0Z qIvd 9102 aivd LT0Z qivd 8102 alvd 6102 OYAAH-D3D v OSIN Yddin S.HINNSNOD T8 Woo/s3y aanig "wag YA WOD/53d ‘HINOW

Ay

6T0T Ae - Moday Yymy 439913 p2jiia
Win g imem




08

TE/T-T/TM  8Z/T-T/tm

0L

03

TE/E-T/Ew

0s

0g/r-T/v®

TE/ST/S®  0€/9-T/9n

or

1€/4-T/tm

0Og

T€/8-1/8® 0QE/6-T/6@

oc

TEfOT-T/0TM  OE/TT-T/TT®M  T&/TT-T/7Tm

o))

SLINAINON/LDINNODSIa

S32IAY3IS 4O LNIWILVLISNITY

Tv2HLOA3
SNO NY¥NL 2313/43LVM
2313/431VM LDINNODSIA

SIaPIO H4OM

SNOILYOEIY3A avay
SQV3Id INVdN2I30 M3N
HlvdIY JLONTH/HILIN HILYM

NO NYNLAINC ¥31vMm

440 1NHS ATNO H3L1¥M
SAVIT HILYM
NOLLYIAHOAN| 53W0LSND
FDNVYNILNIVIN ©18/INVTd
SHIYdIH LHOM AN
SLNO-T1VD HNOR d314Y
ONIGWI

YIVdaYd LINVHUAH 3H14
SNFLIINIM HILYM DSIN XI4

R |‘|l |

VET

8ET

(=1
o

[+
)]

[X-]
-]

SIVI1OL

SW31I AN YILYM DSIN XId

HIVd3IY INVHAAH 3414

ONIGNIT

SLNO-T1VI YNOH Y313V

SHIVdIY LHOIT AN

IDNVNILNIVIN DA18/LNVd

NOILYWHO4NI 43NOLSND

SAVIT YILVM

Mo |IO|O|N[O|m

3440 LAHS ATNO 431V

<t
Lal

NO NYNLAINO H3LVM

<

HIV4IY 3LOWTY/YILIN HILVM

[4)]

NUOIT|IO|dIM|Oo|IN[O|lW|IC|d

DOV |N|OINININ|AHN|O|

OO || H[O]H[O]| N

DMNO|F(F|WNOIN|O|IN|O|O

SAV3Y LNVdNOJ0 M3IN

(=)
~

Y]
<

<
Lal

o
o

(=]
<

SNOILVDII¥IA AV3IY

o

o

(=]

2313/431LvA 1DINNODSIA

n

—

(=]

SNO NYNL DITI/HILVM

<
—

]
-

—
L]

V21410313

el L=l Kia) Kol

0t

<
—

wn
i

nis|o|o

S3JIAY3S 40 INJWILVLISNITH

L

114

91

8T

8

SLWAINON/LDINNODSIA

TE/ZT-T/TPE/TI-T/T1

[€/0T-T/0

0E/6-T/6

T€/8-1/8

TE/L-T/L

0£/9-T/9

TE/S-T/S

0E/¥-T/v

TE/€-T/€

82Z/t-T/t

T€/1-T/T

NOILYWYOLNI ¥3INO01SND

610¢C AeAl - 10day s19piQ YIOM
Y3 13 Ja1eMm




